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AMSANT respects Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander cultures and strives to avoid publishing
the names or images of deceased people.

AMSANT acknowledges the traditional owners and custodians across the lands on which we live
and work and we pay our respects to elders past and present.






ABOUT AMSANT

The Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance
Northern Territory (AMSANT) is the peak
body for Aboriginal community controlled
health services (ACCHS) in the NT and
advocates for equality in health, while
supporting the provision of high-quality
comprehensive primary health care
services for Aboriginal people. AMSANT
has 25 member services throughout the
Northern Territory.

ACCHSs are incorporated independent
legal entities controlled by Aboriginal
people under the principles of self-
determination. Their accountability
processes include holding annual
general meetings and regular elections
of management committees which are
open to all members of the relevant
Aboriginal community.

Community control enables the people
who are going to use health services to
determine the nature of those services,
and then participate in the planning,
implementation and evaluation of
those services.

AMSANT is the NT affiliate of the National
Aboriginal Community Controlled Health
Organisation (NACCHO).

AMSANT is committed to the principles of
community controlled primary health care
— as set out by the National Aboriginal

Health Strategy (1989) — as essential to
improving the health status of Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander people. The
principles encompass:

A holistic view of health care which
includes the physical, social, spiritual
and emotional health of people.

+ Capacity-building of community
controlled organisations and the
community itself to support local and
regional solutions or health outcomes.

Local community control and
participation.

Partnering and collaborating across
sectors.

Recognising the inter-relationship
between good health and the social
determinants of health.



CONSTITUTION

AMSANT is incorporated under
the Commonwealth Corporations
(Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander) Act of 1996.

Our primary objectives are:

+ To promote the health and
wellbeing of Aboriginal people of the
Northern Territory. Through strong
advocacy we support the delivery
of culturally appropriate health
services for Aboriginal people and
their communities.

+ To advocate and promote through
our member services, culturally safe
research into the causes and remedies
of illness and ailments found within
the Aboriginal population of the
Northern Territory.

+ To continue to advocate and support
Aboriginal self-determination and
to establish and grow the Aboriginal
community controlled health (ACCH)
sector in the Northern Territory.

+ To alleviate the sickness, destitution,
suffering and disadvantage, and to
promote the health and wellbeing,
of Aboriginal people of the
Northern Territory.

AMSANT's membership includes Full
Members, Associate Members and
Individual Members. General meetings
are open to all AMSANT members;
however only Full Members are entitled
to vote at general meetings.



THE BOARD

The AMSANT Board is comprised of up

to eight Member Directors elected by the
Full Members, and may also appoint up to
three non-Member Directors.

Member Directors

Barb Shaw (Chairperson)
Anyinginyi Health Service

Donna Ah Chee
Central Australian Aboriginal Congress

Olga Havnen
Danila Dilba Health Service

Eddie Mulholland
Miwatj Health Service

Suzi Berto
Wurli Wurlinjang Health Service

Leon Chapman
Pintupi Homelands Health Service

Bill Palmer
Sunrise Health Service

David Smith
Ampilatwatja Health Centre

Non-member Directors

David Galvin
Jeanette Ward



FROM THE CHAIR

| have great pleasure in providing my first
report as Chairperson, having taken over
the role from Donna Ah Chee, who led the
AMSANT Board so ably during the past
three years.

The year has been marked by our
reflections on the achievements of
AMSANT in the 25 years since it was
established; and anticipation of the
potential in the new directions that the
Board has set with our new Strategic Plan,
2019-2023.

AMSANT's strategic plan is a statement
of the organisation that we are and that
we aspire to be, and the change for
Aboriginal people that we strive for. | am
grateful for the contribution and vision

of my fellow directors, and the CEO and
staff of AMSANT, in developing the new
plan. This is distilled, | believe, in our new
Vision Statement:

That Aboriginal people live
meaningful and productive lives on
their own terms, enriched by culture
and wellbeing.

Further details of the Strategic Plan are
provided in this report.

AMSANT maintains its emphasis on
representing our member services across
the NT to advocate for improving First
Nations peoples' health and wellbeing.

As an affiliate of our national body

— NACCHO — AMSANT contributes



and provides leadership to the sector,
including through our representatives
who are directors on the NACCHO Board,
Donna Ah Chee and Olga Havnen.

This year our leadership was
demonstrated in AMSANT's key role in
the sector's engagement with the Closing
the Gap reform process. AMSANT Chief
Executive Officer, John Paterson, led
representation of the Aboriginal Peak
Organisations NT (APO NT) as the NT
jurisdictional member of the National
Coalition of Peaks that negotiated an
historic partnership agreement with

the Council of Australian Governments
(COAQG). John'is one of the Coalition

of Peaks representatives on the jJoint
Council on Closing the Gap. This is the
first time an external non-government
body has been formally represented in a
COAG structure.

AMSANT has continued to provide
important strategic leadership in the
response to the Royal Commission into
the Protection and Detention of Children,
led by Board director and Danila Dilba
CEO, Olga Havnen; and as a member of
the NT Aboriginal Health Forum, which |
Chair. Four Forum meetings were held
during the year.

A notable achievement has been the
finalisation of the transfer of all Aboriginal
primary health care services in the East
Arnhem region to Aboriginal community
control under Miwatj Health. With work

progressing at Red Lily and Mala'la, we
are hoping to achieve an accelerated
pace of transition over the coming
years. AMSANT's foundation is built on
advocating for Aboriginal community
control as the best model for delivering
primary health care.

Also of significance is the welcome
construction of new health infrastructure
in the bush; this is essential to improving
access to health care. New clinics have
been built for Ampilatwatja and Urapuntja
and it is pleasing to see such progress
finally happening.

With the completion of our new Strategic
Plan, the Board has also taken the
important step of commissioning an
organisational review of AMSANT to
ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of
AMSANT's structure in achieving the goals
of the new Plan.

Along the way, AMSANT has marked our
25th Anniversary, with celebrations and
reflections on what is a major milestone in
Aboriginal leadership in the health sector.

| wish to thank my fellow Board Directors
for their valuable contributions over the
year; and to our CEO, John Paterson, and
all the AMSANT staff who ensure that
AMSANT remains a respected and trusted
voice in support of all our members.

Barb Shaw
Chairperson



CEO’S MESSAGE

| am pleased to report on a year

that has once again demonstrated

the strengths and leadership of the
Aboriginal community controlled health
services (ACCHS) sector here in the
Northern Territory.

The ACCHS sector has continued to
consolidate its position as the largest
provider of primary health care services
to Aboriginal people in the Northern
Territory. Over the year the ACCHSs
sector saw 65% of all Aboriginal people
who access Aboriginal PHC services and
provided 60% of all episodes of care.

These outcomes reflect a continuing
focus on transitioning NT Government
Aboriginal primary health care services
to community control, which has seen
strong progress during the year in the
East Arnhem (Miwatj), West Arnhem
(Red Lily Health Board) and Maningrida
(Mala'la) regions.

AMSANT provides support to our
members in transition processes, as well
as providing a range of supports to all our
member services. Readers will find many
examples in the following pages of the
work of our experienced specialist teams
in responding to services' needs and
supporting a quality improvement focus.
It is always hard to single out any team,
however, there are a few examples I'd
like to briefly mention that are illustrative
of the outcomes we are achieving for

our members.



Our Social and Emotional Wellbeing

and Trauma Informed Care team has
continued to lead transformation in

our sector and more widely, to become
equipped to understand and respond
to the pervasive impacts of unresolved
trauma. Our Digital Health team has
been integral to maintaining our sector’s
leading role in record sharing and in
ensuring ‘in-house’ capacity to control and
customise clinical information systems;
these are the engine rooms of our
services in effectively using and sharing
data. Accessible, high-quality data also
underpins the success of our CQl team's
Collaboratives process which during

the year saw the implementation of a
Childhood Anaemia Collaborative.

Perhaps the most important strategic
development in health during the year
was the success of the national Coalition
of Peak Aboriginal Organisations in
establishing a formal partnership with
the Council of Australian Governments
(COAG) on Closing the Gap. As an APO NT
member, | sit on the COAG Joint Council
as a Coalition of Peaks representative.,
From a national perspective this is a
significant shift from government that

| believe provides the opportunity to
achieve real improvements in health
outcomes for Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander people.

As AMSANT CEO, | chair the Central
Australian Academic Health Science
Network (CA AHSN), which is an important
Aboriginal-led research collaboration.
As an accredited Centre for Innovation
in Regional Health (CIRH), CA AHSN
commissioned $2m in funding from the
Medical Research Future Fund (MRFF),
specifically to projects generated by
community partners. AMSANT is the
lead organisation or partner in three of
these projects.

The past year has also been marked

by significant outcomes resulting from
AMSANT's membership of the Aboriginal
Peak Organisations NT (APO NT) alliance.
In addition to the success on Closing the
Gap, we have made significant progress
towards formalising Aboriginal Housing
NT (AHNT) as the peak Aboriginal housing
body for the NT. AHNT is an important
step in expanding Aboriginal community
control in a critical area of the social
determinants of health.

As always | am immensely appreciative of
the support and leadership provided by
the Chair and Board, and to the AMSANT
family’ — our dedicated staff who make
all of these outcomes possible.

John Paterson
Chief Executive Officer



NEW STRATEGIC PLAN 2019-2023

AMSANT is pleased to have developed
our new Strategic Plan 2019-2023 — with
the input and collaboration of the Board,
management and staff — that sets strong
directions for the organisation in the

coming years.

Our Vision

That Aboriginal people live meaningful
and productive lives on our own terms,

enriched by culture and wellbeing.

Our Role

AMSANT is the peak body for Aboriginal
Community Controlled Health Services
(ACCHSs) in the Northern Territory.

Our Principles

Aboriginal community control is an act

of self-determination’. It ensures that
people who are going to use health
services are able to determine the nature
of those services, and then participate

in the planning, implementation and

evaluation of those services.




1.1

STRONG AND SUPPORTED
AMSANT MEMBERS

Our Members are our strength!
Working in partnership, we will
assist them to deliver culturally
safe, comprehensive primary
health care services by providing,
or advocating for, support in the
areas of health service delivery,
governance, leadership, finances,
workforce, business management,
information technology, or other

issues that they identify.

Identifying the needs of our
Members: We will work with our

Members to ensure a systematic

1.4

Filling the gaps: Where we

are not able to provide support
directly, we will seek to link
Members to other sources of
support and/or advocate on their

behalf for their needs to be met.

Learning from each other: \We
will share ideas, resources and
data inclusively across the sector
to promote best practice and

innovation.

GROWING ABORIGINAL
COMMUNITY CONTROLLED
PRIMARY HEALTH CARE

We are committed to the principles

of Aboriginal community controlled




2.2

2.3

for the Aboriginal community
controlled health model of
comprehensive primary health
care as the most effective way to

promote health and equity.

Supporting the transition to

community control: We will

3.1

support Aboriginal communities
to move along the pathway to
community control in the manner

and to the degree that they wish.

Monitoring and responding

to emerging needs: We will
monitor trends affecting the health
of Aboriginal communities and 3.2

seek to ensure that Aboriginal

needs of Aboriginal people,
including through engaging in
policy and planning processes
and ensuring the health system

is informed by the evidence.
Wherever possible, we will use and
support Aboriginal-led research.
Reforming the health system:
We will continue to play a
leadership role in the reform of
the health system in the Northern
Territory, and nationally, including
through the Northern Territory
Aboriginal Health Forum.

Addressing the social

determinants: \We will advocate




3.4

3.5

Building partnerships: We will
build cooperative partnerships
with key stakeholders, including
Aboriginal organisations and peak
bodies, government agencies and

other mainstream organisations.

Translating evidence into
policy and practice: We will
seek to ensure that both health
service delivery and government
policy is informed by research
and the evidence of what

works to improve the health of

Aboriginal communities.

A STRONG, SUSTAINABLE AND

4.1

4.2

4.3

Strengthening corporate
governance: We will ensure that
AMSANT is well-governed and
accountable at all levels and that
its operations are supported by
effective internal management and

decision-making.

Supporting our staff: \We will
recruit, retain and develop quality
staff, providing them with a
respectful workplace and ensuring
that they have the skills necessary

to assist AMSANT carry out its role.

Building Aboriginal leadership:

We will promote initiatives that




THE YEAR IN REVIEW

Heal our
past
Build our
future




The year marked a milestone of 25 years
since AMSANT's establishment. This was
complemented by the completion of a
new strategic plan and commencement
of work on an organisational review and
the development of a business plan to
ensure that we are best placed to meet
the objectives of our new strategic plan.

Closing the Gap emerged as a major
focus during the year with our CEO
leading the Aboriginal Peak Organisations
NT's (APO NT) engagement as a member
of the national Coalition of Peaks.

The coalition negotiated an historic
partnership agreement with the Council
of Australian Governments (COAG) on
Closing the Gap that includes formal
membership of a Joint Council. The
coming year will see the hard work of
negotiating the new National Agreement
on Closing the Gap.

AMSANT has also continued to engage
with the reforms resulting from the Royal
Commission into the Protection and
Detention of Children in the Northern
Territory. Through its membership of
APO NT, AMSANT is represented on the
Children and Families Tripartite Forum
that brings together the Commonwealth

and Northern Territory governments
with peak Aboriginal and community
representatives. The Tripartite Forum
provides an oversight role in relation to
the reforms and will complement the
existing NT Aboriginal Health Forum.

Work has continued on reforms relating
to out-of-home care, child protection and
juvenile justice and AMSANT completed
the development of a service model

for Early Intervention Family Support
Services (EIFSS) to be provided by ACCHSs
in the NT. The work was funded by
Territory Families and the service model
will be trialled at two of our member
health services.

Transition to community control
continues to be a priority, with AMSANT
supporting our members with this
process. This includes the Red Lily
Health Board which began service roles
during the year and is preparing for the
transition of NTG clinics. AMSANT also
supports the Mala'la Health Board which
has begun transitioning some services
at Maningrida. Miwatj Health Service
successfully completed the transition of
a further two NT Government clinics at
Milingimbi and Gapawiyak.



THE YEAR IN REVIEW

AMSANT's support to members continued
across a range of other areas including
HR, finance, workforce development,
patient information records systems
(Communicare), eHealth and IT, CQl

and public health. AMSANT's support

is particularly important for smaller
member services and during the year we
established a members’ Finance Network
which held a successful and well-attended
face-to-face meeting.

Much of AMSANT's staff time is taken
up engaging with funders and assisting
member services with a range of
Commonwealth, Northern Territory
Government and NT PHN programs.
The Health Care Homes trial involves six
ACCHS members and, following a series
of frustrating delays, good progress

was made during the year in recruiting
participants to the trial. More than 90%
of those enrolled come from our ACCHSs.

Another significant initiative during the year
was a clinical workshop focusing on child
health, involving CEOs, board members
and senior clinicians. The aim was to
ensure a shared understanding among

the key leaders of critical child health
issues and how to address them. Several

actions were taken as a result of the
workshop, including the establishment of
a Childhood Anaemia Collaborative.

In the 18-month Collaborative process,
clinical staff and CQI facilitators from
several services participated in monthly
video conferences where they shared
clinical data and details of the work they
are doing to address childhood anaemia,
including using CQI tools and health
promotion approaches. Clinicians — such
as paediatricians and nutritionists — also
present to those on-line, by sharing their
expertise in this field. Some promising
improvements have already been achieved.

AMSANT continues to support services
to become trauma-informed, culturally-
responsive organisations through
system change and education of staff
in how inter-generational and current
trauma affects our people, and how to
deliver services that support healing
and recovery. We have established an
experienced Aboriginal-led team which
has been in demand to provide training
to members as well as government,
external agencies and Aboriginal partner
organisations that are keen to improve
their methods of working. We are






THE YEAR IN REVIEW

exploring options for long-term funding
for this important work.

The Workforce team implemented a

new approach to AMSANT's Aboriginal
Leadership program and recently
delivered its first regional Leadership
workshop, in partnership with the
Central Australian Aboriginal Congress, to
provide a more supported and intensive
leadership development experience.

The workshop was a huge success and
more regional workshops are planned for
2019-2020.

AMSANT and its members are supporters
of electronic sharing of health records
and we have advocated strongly in
relation to the My Health Record (MHR)
expansion and ‘opt-out’ process, and
the framework for the secondary use of
MHR data. AMSANT plays a crucial role
supporting its members and working
with key stakeholders to liaise with our
communities and their health service
providers to better understand the roll-
out of the MHR and what it means to
consumers and clinicians.

Following a workshop convened in 2016,
AMSANT has continued to advocate in

relation to the on-going syphilis outbreak
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in northern Australia. Funds committed
by the Commonwealth to an enhanced
response to the syphilis outbreak are
being rolled out in the Darwin, Katherine,
East Arnhem and Maningrida regions.

AMSANT's membership of the APO NT
alliance is an important cross-sectoral
partnership for advocating on the social
determinants of health. In addition

to leading APO NT's engagement with
the reforms flowing from the youth
justice and child protection Royal
Commission, AMSANT has provided
input on a wide range of issues. This
includes the implementation of the Local
Decision Making (LDC) policy of the NT
Government that will see greater delivery
of services by Aboriginal controlled
organisations. A related initiative has
been the development of the Aboriginal
Housing NT (AHNT) committee, supported
by APO NT, to become the peak
Aboriginal housing body for the NT.

APO NT also continues to advocate for
a widely supported alternative model
for remote employment as we seek

to replace the current (failed!) CDP
program. Our members have reported
that it is causing significant detriment in



remote communities because of high
levels of financial penalties and a general
disengagement from the scheme.

In May, the AMSANT Board lifted its
moratorium on responding to Aboriginal
health research projects through the
Board Research Sub-committee. The
moratorium was made in response to
the pressures experienced by the high
volume of research projects and the need
to review AMSANT's research priorities
in conjunction with our new strategic
plan. AMSANT remains committed

to ensuring that health research
involving our communities is culturally
safe and directed by the community,
through better engagement with

health researchers.

AMSANT is a partner in many research
projects, including the Mayi Kuwayu
National Study of Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander Wellbeing, and the

Health Pathways national workforce
research project on career pathways

for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
health professionals, funded through the
Lowitja Institute.

The CEO also chairs the Central Australian
Academic Health Science Network (CA
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AHSN) which has become an important
conduit for commissioning community-
led research. Through CA AHSN, we are
leading on, or partnering with, three new
research projects that address social
and emotional wellbeing, non-clinical
indicators for Aboriginal primary health
care and a remote community survey.

AMSANT has actively engaged with
strategic health partnerships during
the year, ranging from our engagement
with NACCHO, our sister affiliates and
the NACCHO CEO Policy Network; to
the development of a Statement of
Collaboration with the NT PHN.

Along the way AMSANT was also
honoured to be joint winner of the NT
Human Rights Award — the “Fitzgerald”
— for Social Change (in an organisation),
shared with the Tangentyere Women's
Family Safety Group.



EXPANDING COMMUNITY CONTROLLED

HEALTH SERVICES

One of AMSANT's strategic priorities is
our commitment to the principles of
Aboriginal community controlled primary
health care as the most effective way to
address the health needs of Aboriginal
people, and to support the transition of
existing services to community control.

In achieving this priority, AMSANT
works with both the Commonwealth
and Northern Territory governments
through the mechanism of the NT
Aboriginal Health Forum. The Forum
has an established policy — Pathways
to Community Control — that outlines
the shared commitment to expanding
community control.

In this context AMSANT is primarily
focused on advocating for, and
supporting, Aboriginal self-determination
and we strive to establish and grow the
sector in the Northern Territory.

Accordingly, AMSANT continues to be
represented on identified regionalisation
reference groups, with a focus to ensure
that clinical infrastructure in the regions
is in place and ready for ‘transferring’
those services to Aboriginal community
controlled entities.

In this regard, AMSANT provides
significant support on regionalisation
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for member services and, in particular,
to the Red Lily Health Board and
Malabam (Mala'la).

On 1 April 2019 the rural primary health
service that was delivered by the Top End
Health Service and funded through NT
PHN was successfully transferred to Red
Lily Health Board. The transfer of further
programs and/or services in the coming
months is also being considered.

Following on from this success, formal
open discussions have started in
planning for the transfer of Minjilang
and Outstation Health Services from
Top End Health Service to the Red Lily
Health Board.

The rural primary health service
provides health promotion and health
education to community members at
the Kakadu homelands and Jabiru town
camps. Topics covered include alcohol
and other drugs, youth health and
chronic conditions.

Additionally, AMSANT has assisted several
members with governance matters,
including the recruitment of independent
Board Directors for member services.
Governance training on rule books

and processes has been provided to
members, with the assistance of ORIC.



Some of the Directors from the Red Lily Health Board: Steven Fejo, June Nadjamerrek, Rosemary Nabulwad,
Steve Hayes, Mary Djurrundudu and Reuben Cooper (Chairperson).
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NT ABORIGINAL HEALTH FORUM

The Northern Territory Aboriginal
Health Forum (NTAHF) is a high-level
partnership that provides guidance and
advice on Aboriginal health planning
and policy in the NT. Forum is guided
by the Agreement on Northern Territory
Aboriginal Health and Wellbeing 2015-
2020, which was launched in July 2015.

The Forum is made up of representatives
from the Commonwealth Government,
the Northern Territory Government,
AMSANT and the NT Primary Health
Networks (NTPHN).

AMSANT is an active member of the
NTAHF and also provides secretariat
support for Forum and nine of Forum'’s
working groups.

NTAHF's strategic focus areas, as outlined
in its work plan, are:

Primary Health Care;
Hospitals and specialist care;
The social determinants of health; and

Health system strengthening and
monitoring.

AMSANT has continued to provide
leadership as a member of the Forum
during the three Forum meetings that
were held during the reporting year.

Forum has supported and progressed
the transfer of remote primary health
care services to Aboriginal community
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control in the priority regions of East
Arnhem, West Arnhem and Maningrida.
The transition of health services to Miwat;
Health in Ramingining and Lake Evella

in East Arnhem has progressed to the
handover of these two health services.

Red Lily Health Service in West Arnhem
has started delivering public health

care services to Jabiru and Forum has
continued to support the planning of
transfering the Maningrida public health
programs to Mala'la Health Service.

NTAHF has also broadened its scope

to evaluate the 2017 transfer of

health services to community control

in Milingimbi.

AMSANT provided input into the Closing
the Gap refresh’via the Forum and also
participated in guiding the site selection
for the evaluation on Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander primary health care systems.

Two new working groups — the Aboriginal
Health Practitioner Workforce, and
Remote Renal — were established

under Forum to focus on strategies to
increase the levels of Aboriginal Health
Practitioners and to address several renal
dialysis concerns in remote areas. Other
working groups continued to progress
Forum priorities, including hosting a
forum on Child Health and contributing
to the annual Continuous Quality
Improvement collaborative meeting.
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PUBLIC HEALTH

PERFORMANCE OF THE SECTOR

Each year AMSANT receives a pooled
report detailing the performance of our
member services, using NTAHKPI (key
performance indicators) data that is
differentiated between urban and remote
services. This pooled data reveals that
65% of the Aboriginal population seen by
the Aboriginal PHC sector are treated in
our community controlled clinics.

This high level of coverage and the 60%
proportion of episodes-of-care provided
by our sector will continue to increase.
Two more clinics that have transferred
to Miwatj Health Service will be included
in next year's reporting period and

the community controlled sector is

also growing in the West Arnhem and
Mala'la regions.

There has been improved performance
in several KPIs, including timely antenatal
care (4% increase in 12 months and 11%
increase over four years); the proportion
of people who have been screened for
renal disease (8% increase over four
years); and cardiovascular disease risk
assessment (the proportion screened has
more than doubled in the last four years,
from 18% to 39%).

For children, ear screening has increased
and the rate with ear discharge has
dropped by 2%, and three out of four
immunisation indicators show a 5%
improvement in children who were
immunised on time under 12 months

of age.

Anaemia has also dropped by 5% this
year, with a larger improvement in
urban areas. This is a very encouraging
reduction because child anaemia is
associated with irreversible neuro-
cognitive changes.

The pooled data report also indicates
the growing burden of chronic disease.
There has been a 37% increase in people
with rheumatic heart disease requiring
penicillin injections over a three-year
period; a 13% increase in the number

of people with heart disease; and an

11% increase in the number of people
with diabetes in the same period. This
increases the workloads of our services at
a time of stagnating funding.

AMSANT continues to Chair both the
technical and clinical working groups
of the NTAHKPIs and designs and
guides much of the work to develop
improved indicators.



Improvements this year included
dropping the age limit to five years for the
diabetes indicators, so as to include the
growing number of children with Type 2
diabetes; and including children in the
‘health check’ indicator for the first time.

In our sector there were 27 children aged
5-14 years and 174 young people aged
15-24 years who were recorded as having
Type 2 diabetes; there were 43 children

in the 5-14 age group who had heart
disease (rheumatic heart disease and/or
congenital heart disease).

AMSANT also provided submissions to
the review of the two national Aboriginal
health data sets — national KPIs and OSR,
which is a workforce and activity data set.
The Australian Institute of Health and
Welfare responded by acknowledging that
our submissions were particularly useful
in guiding its review.

CLINICAL SUPPORT

AMSANT has used the pooled data to
identify areas to improve in and has
prioritised childhood anaemia and
immunisation. A review of immunisation
issues in our sector found a lack of
training options suitable for Aboriginal
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Health Practitioners. A specific AHP
immunisation training course has been
piloted as a result of AMSANT's strident
advocacy. AMSANT also chaired a NTAHF
working group on immunisation which

is focusing on training issues at both
government and community controlled
health services.

AMSANT held a clinical workshop in
August to bring together CEOs, Board
members and senior clinicians to discuss
priority childhood issues, to hear from
expert paediatricians and to workshop
potential solutions. A range of actions
was identified, including the improvement
of training and resources for clinicians,

as well as strategies to improve food
security.

Acting on anaemia in pregnancy was
another priority because the evidence

is now clear that childhood anaemia

is linked to anaemia in pregnancy. An
‘anaemia in pregnancy’ indicator has been
developed and is being piloted at some
health services.

AMSANT continues to support a
network of senior clinicians through
regular teleconferences, meetings
and newsletters. We disseminated



PUBLIC HEALTH

information on a wide range of issues
including the measles outbreak; an
unusually severe influenza season;
errors in the CARPA manuals; cervical
screening; and new Medicare items. We
also held specialist teleconferences on
youth diabetes, the syphilis outbreak and
cervical screening.

EYE HEALTH CARE

AMSANT attracted funding for two eye
health positions in 2018. Kate Andrews
started work in October 2018 to review
the sustainability of surveillance and
management of trachoma and tricihasis
— the complication of trachoma that can
cause blindness if untreated.

Currently the NT Health Department's
communicable disease unit undertakes
screening and treatment through
Commonwealth funding, but this
funding is likely to cease within two
years. Screening and treatment

would then need to be delivered

by the primary health care sector.
AMSANT's consultation and input to the
development of a national options paper
aims to put ACCHSs at the forefront of
future planning and policy development,
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Sweet home, Lajamanu! ... MaeMae Morrison and Rhiannon Binks from AMSANT's digital health team, join
Kathryn Drummond, Teresa Matthews, Stanley Matthews Jnr, Christine Tchooga and Rachel Fleming out in
the Tanami Desert, 870km south of Darwin by road.




PUBLIC HEALTH

to ensure service delivery is based on
the principles of self-determination and
community control.

Funding from Canberra has improved
access to spectacles across remote
communities and has resulted in the
development of the Strong Eyes, Strong
Communities project with Vision 2020.
AMSANT is committed to working
collaboratively with Vision 2020 and

our partners to ensure ACCHSs and
Aboriginal communities are central to the

design and implementation of the project.

Retinal cameras have been delivered

to all our member services with on-
going training and support being
delivered by regional optometrists. The
Retinal Camera program will increase
accessibility to retinal screening and to
any subsequent specialist care.

Mobile and portable retinal cameras

are being trialled at health services that
care for people in the homelands, as
new platforms of technology have been
introduced to address barriers identified
with up-loading, and the triaging of
images. This technology assists remote
area nurses and Aboriginal Health

Practitioners in triaging photographs and

accessing specialist support from city-
based ophthalmology colleagues.

AMSANT also attracted funding for a
position with a Central Australian focus,
working with an eye health committee.
The position provides secretariat support,
as well as undertaking project work on
the integration of eye health care across
primary, secondary and tertiary sectors.

The position is now filled with the project
officer working towards supporting a
more effective and coordinated system.
In both the Top End and Central Australia,
the AMSANT eye health care staff are
working to support the use of data from
both primary health care and specialist
services to improve the system.
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The new health centre at Ampilatwatja.

31



SOCIAL AND EMOTIONAL

WELLBEING (SEWB)

The AMSANT Social & Emotional Wellbeing
(SEWB) programs got a great boost this
year with the recruitment of a Cultural
Responsive Trauma Informed Care

(CRTIC) project officer, a CRTIC facilitator
and a Mental Health Professional. These
appointments join the SEWB project
officer, a casual consultant and our SEWB
and TIC Team Leader.

A highlight this year was the SEWB Forum
— Building and Maintaining a Strong and
Sustainable SEWB Workforce — which was
commissioned by NT PHN and hosted by
AMSANT in June 2019. The forum brought
together SEWB workers from across the
Territory to discuss and identify methods
of building and maintaining a strong and
sustainable workforce.

Forty SEWB professionals from a range of
disciplines and many cultural backgrounds
attended from across the NT. Key themes
included: the importance of Aboriginal
people’s connection to culture, community
and country; understanding Aboriginal
and colonial history in the context of
health care; and the dynamism of the
SEWB practice and how this informs SEWB
design and delivery.

We continue to engage with member
services and provide SEWB workforce
support by hosting teleconferences,
contributing to the NTAHF working
group, attending the Remote AOD
conference, providing ASSIST training
and giving input to the Healing our Spirits
Worldwide conference.

We have put considerable effort into
establishing the clinical supervision model
and framework, and formalising our
processes with members. This includes
investigating clinical supervision structures
to suit ACCHSs, developing an information
brochure and collaborating with health
service managers.

Our team has built strong rapport with
managers, team leaders and staff from
our member services and we have
provided supervision to SEWB, AOD

and mental health staff in the Darwin,
Katherine and Barkly regions. We also
participated in the SEWB working group,
the AOD coordinating committee, and
fortnightly Remote AOD workforce support
tele-conferences.

The Cultural Responsive Trauma Informed
Care program has developed training



materials such as organisational audit
tools, training manuals and our own CRTIC
frameworks and processes.

We have delivered CRTIC training to five of
our member services via 11 workshops;
Territory Families and NAAJA staff have

also received training with a fee-for-service.

This involves exploring the core values of
TIC and understanding how they inform
work practice, as well as the systems and

processes within the relevant organisation.

Key themes in tackling trauma include
'safety, relationships and trust’ and we
always include ‘expressive’ activities, such
as dancing and yarn cycles, that help

to regulate the body and find meaning
through symbolism.

We have also presented and facilitated
small workshops to many conferences
and forums including the International
Indigenous Health and Wellbeing
Conference; the Baker Educational
Symposium — Mind Your Health; the

CQI Collaborative; the Sharing and
Strengthening our Practice conference;
the Care Coordinators Workshop; and the
Rural Medicine Australia Conference.
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Recruitment of a CRTIC Researcher is
underway and we look forward to carrying
out the CRTIC training evaluation with the
Central Australian Aboriginal Congress
(CAAC). The training materials are being
finalised and the complex logistics of
providing training to four clinics are

being developed.

We have also completed four workshops
with staff from Piliyintinji-Ki's Stronger
Families program at Tennant Creek.

We deliver our training in a stepped
approach where we build on concepts

of CRTIC. For example, we may begin

by asking: What does safety feel like?;
then build on that by discussing the
impacts to the physiological system when
safety has been compromised; and then
build further to ask: What can we do to
support our clients to recover a sense
of safety? There was an abundance of
rich information documented and we
have started to collate the learnings into a

report for Piliyintinji-Ki staff.

The SEWB and TIC team leader, Danielle
Dyall, continues to provide oversight as
well as input into the multiple projects
within SEWB and she is very pleased
with the good work, strong training



SOCIAL AND EMOTIONAL
WELLBEING (SEWB)

and agile research that is happening.
Danielle attended the Indigenous
Suicide Prevention Conference and the
International Indigenous Health and
Wellbeing Conference.

She has also been involved in research
projects where she represents AMSANT
as an investigator. Healing the Past

by Nurturing the Future is a national
research project led by expert Aboriginal
academics that is developing an Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander culturally-
appropriate trauma screening tool for
parents (while the child is in utero) that
includes developing culturally-appropriate
healing responses.

Another research project is the Demand
Study for Alcohol Treatment Services in the
NT which aims to secure funding for the
CRTIC program. This has involved writing
many proposals and holding numerous
meetings with funding bodies ... but the
hard work has paid off and the program
will continue to be funded for two more
years with new SEWB positions funded for
future development.
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CONTINUOUS QUALITY
IMPROVEMENT (CQI)
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CONTINUOUS QUALITY
IMPROVEMENT (CQI)

This year marks our tenth year of
operation, during which time we have
been busy and productive in support of
AMSANT's members via:

Continued leadership and
support through the CQI Steering
Committee, with most of our
member services represented and
actively contributing;

An evaluation of the NT CQI Strategy,
which inspired a review of the

NT CQI Strategy Model and the
development of the NT CQI Strategy
Program Logic;

Major contributions to the
development of the National
Framework for Continuous
Quality Improvement;

Significant input from our member
services into published CQI research
projects eg Centre for Research
Excellence Integrated Quality
Improvement (CRE 1QI);

Establishing the CQI Data Working
Group, with 90% of NT primary health
care services involved in this process;

Continued growth of the CQI
Collaborative, with 130 attendees
from across the NT primary

health care sector, with half of the
presenters being Aboriginal and/or
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Torres Strait Islander. (2019 will see
the 14th CQI Collaborative in Darwin);

The release of the National
Framework for Continuous Quality
Improvement in Primary Health

Care for Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander People, 2018-2023; released
by NACCHO in November 2018;

A review and re-design of the NT CQ!
Strategy Model (2019).

As a consequence of our work with the
CQI Data Working Group, there has been
increased interaction with health centre
staff when members of the CQI team
facilitate interpretation and analysis of
the data. These sessions, with all health
centre staff, give them the opportunity
to understand each of the NTAHKPIs. As
clinicians and members of the team, they
are able to put the data into context; to
tell the story behind the numbers and

to identify areas of priority for on-going
CQl activity.

In the recently-released National
Framework for CQI, health services were
given the opportunity to self-identify

areas where they are doing well (and are
encouraged to celebrate these “wins”) and
where processes and outcomes should be
improved. One such area of concern right
across the NT is ‘childhood anaemia’.

40

To address this, a new CQI initiative has
been implemented — the Childhood
Anaemia Collaborative. On a monthly
basis, identified health service
representatives (RANs, child health nurses,
AHPs and CQI facilitators) participate in
video-conferences where they share the
work they are doing to address anaemia.
Clinicians, such as paediatricians and
nutritionists, also make presentations

to those people on-line, to share their
expertise in this field.

Rapid Plan-Do-Study-Act cycles are
undertaken by healthcare teams and the
results and learnings are fed back at each
meeting. Monthly anaemia data is also
submitted by the participating services and
returned to them in a dashboard format
that can be used at health centre level,
allowing staff to visualise their progress in
dealing with anaemia and their ability to
focus on specific aspects of care, eg health
promotion activities, the recording of
anaemia and the prevention of anaemia in
young pregnant women.

Another opportunity to ‘share the
learnings’ (and always a highlight of the
year) is the CQI Collaborative. With 130
attendees from AMSANT member services
and the NT Department of Health, people
came together in Alice Springs to describe
how they implement or improve their
systems, and how they deliver care that



relates to chronic disease and child health.
Primary health care in the NT deals with
real people with real issues that need real
solutions and so presentations covered
care coordination to ensure CQI takes
place in all areas of a PHC service; be it
urban, regional or remote.

PHC staff are supported on the ground
by locally employed CQI Facilitators. This
team of CQI Facilitators is mentored

and supported by the AMSANT CQI
Coordinators who also ensure they have
access to professional development
opportunities, designed to build their
knowledge and skills.

Following the release of the National

CQI Framework this year the NT CQI
Steering Committee undertook a process
of review and comparison between the
National CQl Framework and the NT CQI
Strategy. The CQI Steering Committee
found that both models were consistent
and reflected the same components to
support effective CQI.

We also strengthened the cultural aspects
of appropriateness, respect and safety

in the NT model. These three principles
encompass all elements of the NT CQ
Strategy, with the client at the centre of all
the services delivered within the primary
health care setting.
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POLICY AND ADVOCACY

AMSANT actively engages with national
and NT health policy development by
providing specialist advice to health
reform processes via policy papers
and submissions, and by participating
in forums and other consultation
processes. Submissions and responses
are coordinated by AMSANT staff, with
on-going guidance and advice from the
Primary Health Advisory Group (PHAG),
our member services and from the
AMSANT Board. Advice and support is
also provided to member services to
assist their engagement with relevant
policy initiatives.

The volume and pace of external
requests for policy input has increased
over recent years and it is an on-going

challenge because of our limited capacity.

This is shown in the numerous and
varied submissions we made during the
year, including:

Senate Inquiry into the accessibility

and quality of mental health services

in rural and remote mental health;

Development of the National
Tobacco Strategy;

Stronger Outcomes for Families

discussion paper, outlining proposed

reforms to DSS funding for children
and family services;

Development of an NT
Harm Reduction Strategy for
Addictive Behaviours;

NT Tobacco Control Legislation
Amendment Bill 2018;

Reforms to the Indigenous
Pharmacy Program;

Senate Inquiry into Intergenerational
Welfare Dependence;

NT Climate Change discussion paper,
to inform the development of an NT
Climate Change Strategy;

Commonwealth Government
discussion paper on easing
restrictions on kava;

NT Attorney-General's proposed
Victims of Crime reforms;

Productivity Commission issues
paper on the Social and Economic
Benefits of Improving Mental Health;

NT Liquor Act exposure draft;

Economic Policy Scrutiny Committee
on the NT Liquor Bill 2019;

Social Policy Scrutiny Committee
on the Youth Justice and Related
Legislative Amendment Bill 2019.

Advocacy on key issues also included
pregnancy warning labels on alcohol
products; follow-up on the Inquiry into
Local Adoption; the Royal Commission
into Aged Care Quality and Safety;



proposed changes to the pensioner
concession scheme; and the NDIS.
AMSANT is also a member of numerous
external committees, including the Forum
Working Groups and sub-committees,
and this provides a further important
mechanism for policy development.

An AMSANT Policy Network was formed
during the year for staff in policy-related
positions and for member services to
share information, work collaboratively on
key issues and provide mentorship and
support across our sector. We provide
regular policy updates to the network and
to our member services.

AMSANT provided timely media
responses during the year on diverse and
topical issues, including the stalemate
on remote NT Aboriginal housing;
graduating young health leaders; the
syphilis outbreak in the NT; remote
essential services closures; the Don

Dale Youth Detention Centre; the Youth
Justice Amendment Bill 2019; changes to
the Youth Justice Act; and advocating for
closed Youth Courts.

As a member of the Aboriginal Peak
Organisations NT (APO NT) alliance,
AMSANT provides input to its policy and
advocacy initiatives and has contributed
to numerous submissions and

consultation processes that are outlined
in the APO NT section on page 64. The
primary policy and advocacy issue
involving APO NT was our engagement
with the national Coalition of Peaks in
influencing the direction of the Closing
the Gap 'refresh’ process and the
establishment of a formal partnership
with COAG on developing the next
iteration of Closing the Gap.




HEALTH RESEARCH

AMSANT is committed to ensuring that
health research involving our communities
is culturally safe and directed by the
community, through better engagement
with health researchers at all stages of the
research cycle.

AMSANT has a formal process for health
researchers seeking feedback or support
for research proposals, and is actively
engaged in several research projects. We
provide guidance for health researchers
seeking to involve Aboriginal communities
and/or our member services. Health
researchers complete a pro forma for
consideration, with requests for support
or engagement referred to the Board
Research Sub-committee.

Researchers may also seek feedback at
the early stage of research development.
The sub-committee meets before Board
meetings to assess research projects and
provide recommendations to the Board.

During the year the AMSANT Board
resolved to lift a moratorium on
considering health research projects,
which had been imposed due to the

need to review AMSANT's research
processes and capacity, in response to the
development of a new Strategic Plan.

Despite our limited resources, AMSANT
is a contributor to many health research
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projects. AMSANT is a partner in the Mayi
Kuwayu National Study of Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander Wellbeing and — in
partnership with health services, university
and peak organisation partners — is in
the final stages of a national workforce
research project on career pathways

for Aboriginal & Torres Strait Islander
health professionals, funded by the
Lowitja Institute.

Other research involvement includes
projects addressing vaccines,
implementation of best practice
management of hepatitis B, the Healing
the Past by Nurturing the Future

national research project; as well as CQ|,
employment of community-based ear
health workers in ACCHSs, point-of-care
testing, diabetes in pregnancy and young
people, and models of dialysis care.

AMSANT and other affiliates are also
partners with the South Australian Health
and Medical Research Institute (SAHMRI)
on a project to improve STI testing and
treatment in remote communities. Two
sexual health positions are located within
AMSANT for a two-year period.

AMSANT is a member of the Central
Australian Academic Health Science
Network (CA AHSN), which is chaired
by AMSANT's CEOQ. Other partners



include health, government, research
and university stakeholders. CA AHSN is
accredited as one of only nine Centres

for Innovation in Regional Health (CIRH)
around the country, providing access to
Medical Research Future Fund (MRFF)
funding, which to date has been used to
commission 20 research projects.

AMSANT is funded or partnering in four
projects, focused on: developing non-
clinical indicators for our sector; social
and emotional wellbeing; PHC workforce

strategy; and a remote community survey.
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AMSANT's membership of the Lowitja
Institute CRC is also an important research
relationship, representing a commitment
to develop an Aboriginal-controlled

health research sector. The Research
Advocacy Policy Manager and the CEO
attended the Lowitja Participants’ Forum
which provides direction and input from
members to the CRC. AMSANT also
supported and presented at the biannual
Lowitja Institute International Indigenous
Health and Wellbeing Conference that was
held in Darwin in June. The AMSANT CEO
delivered a keynote address.



WORKFORCE & ABORIGINAL
LEADERSHIP SUPPORT (WALS)

During the year AMSANT formed a leadership development partnership with the Australian Indigenous
Leadership Centre (AILC). AMSANT CEQ, John Paterson, and AILC CEQO, Robyn Forester (centre) are
joined by AMSANT staff MaeMae Morrison, Gemina Corpus, Timmy Duggan and Erin Lew Fatt, and Mia
Christophersen from the Fred Hollows Foundation.

The Workforce & Aboriginal Leadership
Support (WALS) team continues to build
key partnerships both regionally and
nationally, and to collaborate on projects
and initiatives on behalf of our members.
The team's focus is to support the
development of a quality and sustainable
Aboriginal health workforce for the NT.

A robust Aboriginal workforce contributes
to the strength of health services,

which in turn helps develop strong and
healthy communities.
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CAREER PATHWAYS PROJECT

The Career Pathways project is funded

by the Lowitja Institute and includes key
partners such as Human Capital Alliance
and the University of New South Wales.
The aim of the project is to provide insights
and guidance to enhance the capacity

of the health system to recruit, retain

and support Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander people in the health workforce,
and to enhance their careers.



The project successfully engaged
stakeholders with a survey that elicited
378 responses, /0 interviews across
five jurisdictions, and more than 240
participants in the case studies for the
NT and NSW. The project is nearing
conclusion with a final published report
and a range of 'knowledge translation
activities' scheduled to present
findings and to influence the workforce
policy environment.

ABORIGINAL LEADERSHIP
PROGRAM

The Aboriginal Leadership program

has, for the first time, trialled a regional
leadership workshop in Alice Springs using
a new format which benefitted those
Central Australian Aboriginal Congress
staff members who attended. The
success of the format and the regionalised
workshops was valuable to individuals and
their services alike, and will be replicated
throughout the NT in the coming months.

Following an independent review of

the program, AMSANT entered into a
partnership with the Australian Indigenous
Leadership Centre (AILC) to allow AMSANT
to focus on supporting member services
and to jointly coordinate workshop
facilitation and content with AILC. Our
collaboration and shared contributions
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will bolster AMSANT's ability to further
strengthen Aboriginal health leadership.
Planning is well underway for two
leadership workshops to be held each year.

ITC WORKFORCE SUPPORT

This year saw the addition of a second
Indigenous Health Project Officer (IHPO) at
AMSANT to support the Integrated Team
Care (ITC) program. With an IHPO now
based in the Top End as well as Central
Australia, greater support for ITC program
sites is now possible.

AMSANT planned and hosted its annual
‘care coordination workshop in May 2019
when we welcomed 30 participants to
Darwin. Presentations were made on

the NT framework for chronic conditions
and self-management; self-care for health
practitioners; managing clients with
chronic pain; ITC data trends; re-evaluating
ITC program outcomes; Health Care
Homes; NT Health Pathways; TEHS Primary
Health Outreach; and rheumatic heart
disease control.

AMSANT is working closely with its
members, stakeholders and NT PHN
to continually improve the quality and
scope of the ITC program by providing
support, identifying challenges and
realising opportunities.



WORKFORCE & ABORIGINAL
LEADERSHIP SUPPORT (WALS)

NT ABORIGINAL HEALTH
ACADEMY

The NT Aboriginal Health Academy pilot
program is an initiative of AMSANT and
Indigenous Allied Health Australia (IAHA).
The pilot has a strengths-based approach
to develop the health workforce in the
NT by providing Academy students with
foundational health qualifications and
experience, and building employment
opportunities with key stakeholders.

The Academy is a grass-roots program
that actively works towards investing

in our young people and our health
workforce. This year saw the students
successfully complete their Certificate I
in Health Support Services and move to a
school-based traineeship where students
are enrolled in the Certificate Ill in Allied
Health Assistance.

As at November 2018, 80% of students
had placements with various allied health
organisations across the Darwin region.
These organisations ~ referred to as ‘host
employers' ~ were arranged through

Group Training Northern Territory (GTNT).

The NT Aboriginal Health Academy has
secured funding for a further three years
to continue delivering the program,
because interest from students and
schools wanting to study a VET in Schools

pathway in health continues to grow.
There was significant interest from
the community about the next intake,
with many recognising the importance
of growing our own Aboriginal health
professionals and leaders.

An evaluation of the Academy pilot
program is underway. Students enrolled in
the Academy pilot program are scheduled
to complete the program by September
2019 with a Certificate Ill in Allied Health
Assistance, relevant workplace experience
and their Year 12 certificates. AMSANT
looks forward to supporting these future
leaders in their chosen health journeys.




GP REGISTRAR WORKFORCE
SUPPORT

AMSANT continues to work closely with
Northern Territory General Practice
Education (NTGPE) to deliver on the
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
Strategic Initiatives program. The
partnership gives support to GP Registrars
who have been recruited to work at the
clinics of AMSANT's member services.

In conjunction with the NTGPE's cultural
educators and Aboriginal health medical
educators, the partnership embeds
cultural capability through orientation

and workshops held throughout the year.
‘Cultural immersion’ camps in Kakadu give
further appreciation of Aboriginal lore and
society for the GPs.

Another key focus of this work is the
facilitation of the Senior Medical Officers
Committee and its related networks

to discuss key matters relating to GP
Registrars and the Senior Medical Officers
within member services. This has

been a valued network to further build
collaboration around GPR placements.
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KEY COLLABORATIONS &
PROJECTS

This year WALS:

Planned and hosted an NT
Nursing and Midwifery forum in
February 2019;

Worked with member services and
the NT Aboriginal Health Forum to

identify key workforce initiatives for
the Aboriginal health sector;

Continued to identify and seek
funding to support the Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander Health
Practitioner students and workers;

Worked in partnership with the
National Disability Services (NDS NT)
to engage with health and community
organisations to develop a Human
Services Industry Plan for the NT
which is due at the end of 2019; and

Collaborated with NT Primary

Health Network (NTPHN) and NT
Department of Health (NT DoH) to
deliver and implement key workforce
projects and initiatives involving
clinical and non-clinical workforce.



DIGITAL HEALTH

It has been a busy year for the Digital
Health Unit as we contributed to the
country-wide education program about
the ‘opt-out period’ for the national My
Health Record (MHR) system that saw the
creation of an electronic medical record
for every Australian. Our member services
continue to lead the field in record-sharing,
with three of them being in the top ten
users of the MHR across the country.

Quality data is the fundament of effective
record sharing and we have been

active in supporting our members with
data quality and reporting processes
within their Communicare systems.

The January round of reporting to the
National Key Performance Indicators
(NKPI) for Aboriginal health went very
smoothly due to enhancements to the
new Commonwealth Health Reporting
Portal and a new Communicare
reporting approach. We maintained our
partnership with the AMSANT CQI team
in presenting the yearly CQI and Digital
Health workshop.

The year started with concerns over the
functioning of the Communicare software
as some member services were operating
older versions that needed upgrading,

but those services that did upgrade had
problems. We got stuck in and solved

the problems and have seen a steady
improvement in software stability ever
since. Our focus remains on ensuring that

all our members have access to a high-
functioning clinical information system that
allows them to provide the best possible
primary health care.

This year we also identified problems
with the Argus messaging software used
for secure message delivery (SMD) within
Communicare. Messages from the
Northern Territory Government had not
been arriving at health services despite
the NTG receiving electronic notification
of successful message delivery. This
further strengthened our resolve to
update software more regularly and to
improve our communications with our
key providers, to ensure they keep us
up-to-date with known issues within
their products.

The Digital Health Unit has continued to
follow the progress of the NT DoH 'refresh’
of their technology systems through the
Acacia Project. This has implications for
AMSANT as links to their systems are
critical to the patient care our members
provide. Itis our role to ensure that any
improvements to the NT DoH system

also provide improvements to how our
members interact with their systems.

We have maintained our support for
member services' use of tele-health
systems and have worked towards
providing access to this useful tool for
all health services. To that end, a pilot



program has been initiated to streamline
access to tele-health sessions at NT

DoH hospitals by trialling a direct-dial
number to the NT Connection Service. As
ever, good internet connections remain
essential for these functions.

This year saw the Digital Health Unit
strengthen our links with the NT DoH
digital health team with a secondment of
one of our team to their program; we look
forward to developing this relationship
further. The Digital Health team also
gained a member as we supported our
health services through the first phase of
Health Care Homes.

For many years the Digital Health Unit
has realised that support for our health
services provides both clinical excellence
and operational effectiveness as a
business. Thus we have worked hard on
refreshing intranet systems and enabling
vast improvements to operations as new
software becomes available.

Overall, our approach is one of
collaborator and mentor, ensuring

that the capacity remains ‘in-house’

to control and customise systems as
required by the health service. This
work has broadened into support with
communication strategies, including social
media and health service websites. There
has also been a big focus on ‘dashboards’
providing visual tools for CQIl and
reporting processes.
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ACCREDITATION

AMSANT and its member services have
always recognised the vital importance

of achieving and maintaining Clinical
Accreditation under the RACGP standards
and/or Organisation Accreditation under
the ISO 9001 (2015) standards, or through
QIC framework and standards.

AMSANT was one of the first organisations
in Australia to achieve ISO 9001 (2015)
accreditation as a quality organisation and
has maintained accreditation, after a full
certification re-accreditation in 2018.

We play the lead role in helping to facilitate
and prepare our member services to
achieve these goals as well. New member
services have been visited and supported,
such as Peppimenarti, and there continues
to be anincrease in direct requests from
the members for assistance from AMSANT.
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AMSANT's Accreditation Officer works
directly with the services throughout the
Northern Territory and provides facilitation
and coordination roles, as required. Mock
audits, assessments, expert advice and
practical assistance are provided in both
Clinical and Organisational accreditation.
We also help develop accreditation action
plans, audit systems and respond to

all related requests. These roles have
increased further with the introduction of
the RACGP 5th Edition Standards as well as
the new ISO 9001 (2015) standard.

Our diligence in these tasks and
functions has seen AMSANT's member
services achieve the highest rates

in Australia for both Clinical and
Organisational accreditation.



AMSANT's Accreditation Officer, Ken O'Brien, travels the NT to support AMSANT member services with
accreditation, audits and the maintenance of ISO and CQI standards.
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Our Health., Our Wavy!
25 Years of Health Leadership
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AMSANT — 25 years of Health Leadership!

AMSANT celebrated its 25th birthday

this year with the Our Health, Our

Way conference in Alice Springs which
consolidated the Aboriginal call for further
community control and self-determination
through the management of our health
services in the NT.

The event energised the 200 delegates,
speakers and sponsors to continue
their work towards ‘transferring’

more government health services to
the community.

Delegates from the Top End, the Barkly,
Central Australia, Far North Queensland
and the Kimberley joined together on
Arrernte land to develop professional
skills, share their experiences and network
with their colleagues. Some people, both
young and old, stood up for the first time
to tell their health story to the biggest mob
of people.
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The atmosphere was positive and inclusive,
yet there was an enduring impatience
towards government inaction and
bureaucratic hum-bug that has impeded
progress in health, housing and justice
issues for many years.

AMSANT and our member services
always seek to work in collaboration
with governments and their agencies
but, as the conference was told many
times, those politicians too often don't
listen to Aboriginal opinions, knowledge
and experience.

The conference was imbued with the
mood of Voice, Treaty, Truth! and

a recurring theme was the need for
governments to walk with us; not to stand
against us.



There were too many deadly speakers to
mention them all but Barb Shaw (Chair,
AMSANT); Pat Anderson (Chair, Lowitja
Institute); Pat Turner (CEO, NACCHO);
Donna Ah Chee (CEO, Congress) and Olga
Havnen (CEO, Danila Dilba) were articulate
and challenging advocates in the plenary
sessions. All have been central to the
development of community control in the
last 25 years.

CEQ, John Paterson, took questions from
the floor and kept things moving and
grooving on the dais, and Ben Mitchell (Co-
Chair, NAIDOC Committee) was a warm
and witty Master of Ceremonies.

There were strong presentations from
AMSANT members Pintupi, Ampilatwatja,
Anyinginyi, Miwatj, Danila Dilba, Congress
and Katherine West; AMSANT staff; and
our allies NAAJA, Menzies School of Health,
Kimberly Aboriginal Medical Services

and Nirrumbuk.
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June Oscar, the Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander Commissioner, gave an after-
dinner speech that moved the audience
with its revolutionary tone and its power
and passion, as she called for better
consultation with us, better justice for us
and better control by us.

Reflecting the diverse interests and
disciplines of our sector, presentations
were made on the birth and growth of
AMSANT / the effectiveness of community
control and the ‘transfer’ of health services
to it / youth justice and child protection

/ SEWB / child health / regionalisation /
building the Aboriginal workforce / health
research / environmental health / NDIS

/ aged care / health promotion / social
media.
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ABORIGINAL PEAK ORGANISATIONS
NORTHERN TERRITORY (APO NT)

The Aboriginal Peak Organisations (APO
NT), established in 2010, comprises an
alliance of AMSANT, the Northern Land
Council and Central Land Council. We
work collectively to address the key
social determinants (poverty, housing,
governance, training, justice etc) via
engagement with policy issues that
impact Aboriginal people across the
Northern Territory. We advocate strongly
for our rights to self-determination

and engage broadly with Aboriginal
community leaders, Aboriginal and
non-Aboriginal organisations, key stake-
holders, and the Northern Territory and
Commonwealth governments.

This financial year APO NT provided
submissions to many inquiries and
committees, and lobbied government
agencies with letters and media releases
on various policy areas, including law

and justice, housing, CDP, income
management, ‘cashless debit’ welfare and
alcohol reform.

In particular, APO NT has been at the
forefront nationally in pushing for reform
of the Community Development Program
(CDP). The current CDP program affects
many NT-based service providers and
directly discriminates against, and
impacts on, Aboriginal people living in
remote areas. APO NT has provided
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solutions through the development of an
alternative model to the current CDP —
the Fair Work and Strong Communities:
Remote Development and Employment
Scheme. The scheme was developed in
collaboration with a wide range of CDP
providers, Aboriginal organisations and
peak bodies.

Fair Work and Strong Communities
seeks to increase the number of jobs

in communities, drive community
participation, and see a shift away from a
focus on compliance and administration,
towards a community development

and case management model aimed at
achieving long-term employment and
development outcomes.

In December 2018, APO NT presented
this alternative model at the National ALP
Conference in Adelaide and continues its
advocacy to persuade the Commonwealth
Government of the merits of the Fair Work
and Strong Communities Scheme.

APO NT continues to strengthen our
relationships with the Northern Territory
and Commonwealth governments. The
APO NT Coordinator, Brionee Noonan, was
seconded to the NT Attorney-General's
Department for ten weeks to assist the
Aboriginal Justice Unit in researching

and drafting sections of the Aboriginal
Justice Agreement.
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APO NT staff celebrate winning the NT Human Rights Diversity Award 2019 for their work addressing
the social determinants of health: Aimon Riyana, Isabella Setz, Kate Muir, Daisy Burgoyne, Louise Weber,
Theresa Roe and Wes Miller.

APO NT also hosted Jen Yuen from

the Department of Social Services in
Canberra. Jen drafted a framework that
will accompany the APO NT Partnership
Principles, providing guidance to non-
Aboriginal organisations that have
endorsed these principles.

Following the successful FASD (fetal alcohol
spectrum disorder) Forum, the APO NT
secretariat undertook remote community
consultations across the Top End to
update people on FASD developments and
to provide input to the NT Government's
draft FASD Strategy. The APO NT
community consultations were held to
complement the Department of Health's
consultation process.
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APO NT continues to work closely with
the NTG on the Local Decision Making
Reference Group as part of the NTG's
commitment to transfer local services
and decision-making to local and regional
organisations and communities.

InJuly 2018 the NT Government

and the NT Aboriginal land councils
(Northern, Central, Tiwi and Anindilyakwa)
commemorated the 30-year anniversary of
the Barunga Statement by renewing their
formal partnership to work collaboratively
towards a Treaty. All parties signed

a memorandum of understanding to
develop a Treaty framework for the NT.
APO NT members and staff participated
and witnessed this significant event.



ABORIGINAL PEAK ORGANISATIONS
NORTHERN TERRITORY (APO NT)

During the year we also met with the
federal Indigenous Affairs Minister, Ken
Wyatt, and federal shadow minister Linda
Burney; the Productivity Commissioner
Romlie Mokak; the NT Commissioner

for Corrections; and we also hosted
international visitor Alounxai Sounnalath,
the vice-president of the Lao Youth Union.

HOUSING/ABORIGINAL
HOUSING NT

There's been much activity in housing
research and policy development in

the past year, leading to the historic
incorporation of Aboriginal Housing NT
(AHNT) as the first Aboriginal peak housing
body in the NT.

Position papers were developed and
drafted to support the development of an
NT Aboriginal community housing model|,
with the critical support of two Aurora
interns who assisted the APO NT Housing
Policy Officer.

These papers focused on three central
themes that will support the devolution of
housing control and reflect the aspirations
of AHNT members:

Community Control — Aboriginal
organisations will provide strong
governance and key partnerships;
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Housing for Health — environmental
health principles will be embedded to
promote healthy living practices;

Culturally-informed sustainable
design — cultural practices will be
respected and enhanced in response to
local environments, and be adaptable to
climate change.

APO NT provided on-going advice and
presentations to many advisory and
stakeholder groups, while advocating
for Aboriginal perspectives in all aspects
of housing reform. These consultations
included:

Remote Rent Review stakeholder
advisory group;

Homelessness Strategy consultation
workshops;

Town Camps Futures workshops;

Housing for ‘young people leaving
care’ workshop;

Transitional accommodation for
‘people leaving prison’ workshop; and

Better pathway centres and short-
term accommodation workshop.

APO NT provided the Secretariat to
AHNT via the Housing Policy Officer, who
convened quarterly meetings; increased
the AHNT Committee’s membership;



secured funding for a consultant to
manage the incorporation of the peak
body; and established and resourced a
steering committee to engage Aboriginal
organisational leaders to work with

the consultant.

APO NT and AHNT made presentations at
the National Aboriginal Housing Caucus in
Sydney and submitted successful abstracts
for joint presentations at the National
Housing Conference 2019 and the

World's Indigenous Housing Conference
(postponed till 2020).

APO NT was delighted and proud when
AHNT was announced as the winner of
the NT Human Rights Diversity Award,
and was also recognised as the most
linguistically-diverse and geographically-
dispersed representative body in the NT.
It was appropriate that AHNT shared the
‘winners' stage with AMSANT at the NT
Human Rights Awards in December 2018,
because AMSANT has played a central role
in auspicing APO NT and supporting the
AHNT Committee.
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ABORIGINAL GOVERNANCE
& MANAGEMENT PROGRAM
(AGMP)

APO NT's Aboriginal Governance &
Management Program (AGMP) is designed
to build operational strength and resilience
in Aboriginal organisations. We do this

by providing holistic, tailored governance
and management support to nominated
Aboriginal organisations, according to

their self-determined needs. This support
complements existing agencies and
resources and takes a long-term approach,
while recognising that a development
approach directed by Aboriginal people
ourselves is the key to achieving sustained
and effective governance.

In this financial year the AGMP team
has been busy supporting directors and
managers of organisations in Amanbidii,
Imanpa, Weemol, Peppimenarti, Atitjere
and Gunbalanya. The team has provided
specific tools, assistance and advice to
improve governance and management,
while building on the organisations'

existing resources and strengths.

Self-determination, collaboration and
working with strength-based approaches
to development continue to be the
central values informing our approach to
partnering with Aboriginal organisations.









GLOSSARY

ACCHS
AHP
AMSANT
APO NT
ATSIHP
CAAC

CA AHSN
CIRH
CPHAG
cql
CRTIC
DoH
EIFSS
GPET
GPR
ICDP
IHPO
IRCA

ITC
NACCHO
NTAHF
NTG
NTAHKPI
NTPHN
ORIC
PHAG
PHC
PHMO
PHN
PIRS
SEMS
SEWB
TIC
WALS

Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Services
Aboriginal Health Practitioner

Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance Northern Territory
Aboriginal Peak Organisations Northern Territory
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Health Practitioner
Central Australian Aboriginal Congress

Central Australian Academic Health Science Network
Centre for Innovation in Regional Health

Clinical and Public Health Advisory Group

Continuous Quality Improvement

Cultural Responsive Trauma Informed Care
Department of Health (NT or Commonwealth governments)
Early Intervention Family Support Services

General Practice Education and Training

General Practice Registrar

Indigenous Chronic Disease Package

Indigenous Health Project Officer

International Register of Certified Auditors

Integrated Team Care

National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation
Northern Territory Aboriginal Health Forum

Northern Territory Government

Northern Territory Aboriginal Health Key Performance Indicators
Northern Territory Primary Health Network

Office of the Registrar of Indigenous Corporations
Public Health Advisory Group

Primary Health Care

Public Health Medical Officer

Public Health Network

Patient Information Recall System

Secure Electronic Message Service

Social & Emotional Wellbeing

Trauma Informed Care

Workforce and Aboriginal Leadership Support
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Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance Northern Territory Aboriginal Corporation

ABN 26 263 401 676

Financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019

Directors’ Report

Your directors present their report, together with the accompanying financial statements of the Corporation, for the
year ended 30 June 2019 on the Corporation for the financial year ended 30 June 2019,

Appointed

26 June 2015
26 June 2015
26 June 2015
26 Juna 2015
3 Movember 2015
17 November 2017
26 June 2015
26 June 2015
1 March 2017
17 November 2017
18 July 2019

Resigned

18 July 2019

Dwring the financial year, 5 meetings of directors wane held. Attendances by each direcior were as follows:
Directors'

Number eligible to attend

i N AR CA O CR Eh OR ERCR

MNumber attended

PO e O e OGS B O B R

Information on Directors
5 al
Director Res pﬂiﬂlli
Barbara Shaw Chair
Lecn Chapman Treasurar
Donna Ah Chea Director
David Smith Director
Susan Berto Diractor
David Galvin Indepandent Director
Oliga Havnen Director
Edward Mulholland Diresctor
Daniel Tyson Former Director
Jeanatte Ward Independent Director
William Palmer Director
Information on Corporation Secretary
John Paterson is and has been the Corporation Secretary since 26 June 2015,
Meatings of Directors
Barbara Shaw
Leon
Donna Ah Chee
David Smith
Susan Barlo
David Galvin
Ciga Havnen
Edward Mulholland
Daniel Tyson
Joeanetle Ward
Wilkam Palmer
Principal Actlvities

During the year the principal activities of the Corporation were:

¢ To alleviate the sickness, suffering and disadvaniage, and to promote the health and well-being of Aboriginal
people of the NT through the delivery of health services and the promaotion of research into causes and
remedies for iliness and allment found within the Aboriginal population of the Northem Territory;

+ Promote ‘Primary Health Care' which means essential health care based on practical, scientifically sound and
socially acceptable methods and technologies which address the main health problems in the community
through preventive, curative, rehabiitalive and promotive services; and

« Serve as a peak body and a forum for the Aboriginal Medical Services in the Northemn Temitory.

Review of Operations

The profit of the Comporation for the financial year amounted to $119,022 (2018: Loss of $74,002).

Significant Changes in the State of Affalrs
Mo significant changes in the consclidated group's state of affairs occurmed during the financial year.

Events Subsequent to the End of the Reporting Period

Wo matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Corporation, the results of thosa operalions, or the state of affairs of the
Corporation in fulure financial years.

Events Subsequent to the End of the Reporting Perlod

Mo matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Corporation, the resuits of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
Corporation In future financial years.



Aboriginal Medical Services Alllance Northern Territory Aboriginal
Corporation ABN 26 263 401 676
Financial report for the year ended 30 June 2018

Likety Developmants and Expacted Results of Operations
The Comporation expects fo maintsin the present status and level of oparations.

Emdronmental Regulation
Thmmumf: operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulation under & law of
the Commaonwealth or of a slate or terrbory.

Indemnification of Officers
Mo indemnities have been given of nsurance premiums paid, during or since the and of the Snancial year, for
By parscn who is o has been an officer or audior of the Corponation,

Proceedings on Behalf of Company

Mo person has appliled for leave of court to bring procesdings on behalf of the Corporation o intervana In

any procesdings to which the Corporation is a party lor the purpose of taking responsibity on behalf of the
Corporation for all or any pan of those proceadings.

The Carporation wes ot 8 party to any such proceedings during the yaar,

Auditor's Independence Declaration

The lead auditor's independenca declaration for the year ended 30 June 2018 has been recelved and can
b found on page 5 of the financial report.

This directors’ report is signed in accondance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Director ?'J %"’——

F Bt Shaw
'r#’ Chas s g

e el

Dated this 25th day of October 2018
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Nexia
Edwards Marshall NT

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER
SECTION 339-50 OF THE CORPORATIONS (ABORIGINAL AND TORRES STRAIT ISLANDER] ACT 2006 AND
SECTION 60-40 OF THE AUSTRALIAN CHARTITIES AND NOT-FOR-PROFITS COMMISSION ACT 2012

TO THE DIRECTORS OF ABORIGINAL MEDICAL SERVICES ALLIANCE NORTHERN TERRITORY ABORIGIMAL
CORPORATION

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2019 there have been:

[ Mo contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations {dboriginal and
Torres Stralt Islonder) Act 2006 and the Austrolion Charities Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, in relation
to the audit; and

(i) No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

by U ki

Nexia Edwards Marshall NT
Chartered Accountants

ﬁ'{j f«f-;{ .

Moel Clifford
Partner

Dated 25 October 2019




Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance Northern Territory Aboriginal Corporation

ABN 26 263 401 676

Financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Revenue and other income
Total revenue and other Income

Administration expense

Consultants and contractors
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Employes banefits expense

Motor vehicle expense

Opearations expense

Retum of funds

Travel expense

Total expenses

Profitiloss) before income tax
Income tax expense

Profiti{loss) for the year

Other comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive incomel{loss) for the year
Profit/(loss) attributable to members of the Corporation
Total comprehensive incomedloss) attributable to members of the

Corporation

2019 2018
§ $
8742,833 8,485,723
8,742,833 8,485,723
67,978 161,393
420459 315,564
79076 149,575
5712357 5647419
178803 171,545
1,200,072 1,338,245
172,268 .
785708 775,984
8623811 8,550,725
119,022  (74,002)
119,022 (74,002)
119,022  (74,002)
119022 (74,002)
119,022 (74,002)

The accompanying notes form part of these finandial statements.



Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance Northern Territory Aboriginal Corporation

ABN 26 263 401 676

Financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other assals

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
TOTAL NON-CURREMNT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables
Provisions

Other liabilities

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
MON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

MET ASSETS

EQUITY

Retained samings

TOTAL EQUITY

& ot A

10

2019 2018
$ ]

3752322 2,775,386
06717 698,705
233211 130,543
4,292,310 3,604,633
247,361 223,188
247,361 223188
4530671 3,827,821
650288 686,340
1123300  1,039.960
| 1862614 1.337.780
3645202 3,064,080
87415 75709
87415 75709
3,732,617 3,139,789
807,054 686,032
807.054 688,032
807.054 688,032

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.



Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance Northern Territory Aboriginal Corporation

ABN 26 263 401 676
Financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Retained
Mote  Earnings Total
§ $
Balance at 1 July 2017 762,034 762,034
Comprehensive loss
Loss for the year (74,002) (74,002
Total other comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive loss attributable to owners of the -
Corporation for the year  (T4.002) (74,002)
Balance at 30 June 2018 688,032 688,032
Balance at 1 July 2018 688,032 688,032
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year 118,022 158,461
Total other comprehensive income . .
Total comprehensive Income attributable to owners of the
Corporation for the year 19,022 158461
Balance at 30 June 2019 BO7,054 846,483

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.



Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance Northern Territory Aboriginal Corporation
ABN 26 263 401 676
Financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 2019 2018
$ $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipt of grants 9,182,050 7,919,758
Interest income 33,387 38,638
Other receipts 409,501 409,402
Paymeants to suppliers and employees (8,583,747) (B.0OT4471)
Met cash generated from operating activities " 1,051,200 203,327
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 28,986 38,346
Payment for property, plant and equipment (103.248)  (149,981)
Net cash used in investing activities (74,263)  (111,635)
Met increase in cash held 976,937 181,602
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 2,775,386 2593683
Cash and cash squivalents at and of financial year 4 3752332 2,775,385

The accompanying noles form part of these financial statements.



Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance Northern Territory Aboriginal Corporation
ABN 26 263 401 676
Financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements cover Aboriginal Medical Senvices Alliance Morthemn Temitory as an individual
entity, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The Corporation is an Aboriginal Corporation that was
established under the Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strail Islander) Act 2006 and is a charity
registered under the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Act 2012,

Basis of Preparation

The Carporation applies Australian Accounting Standards — Reduced Disclosure Requirements as sat out
in AASE 1053: Applicalion of Tiers of Australlan Accounting Standards.

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards = Reduced Disclosure Requirements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (AASE), the Corporations (Aboriginal and Tormes Straif Islander) Act 2006 and the
Ausiralian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, The Corporation is a not-for-profit entity for
financial reporting purposas under Australian Accounting Standards.

Auslralian Accounting Standards sel out accounting policies that the AASE has concluded would result in
financial statements containing relevant and refiable information about transactions, events and conditions.
Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presanted below
and have been consistently applied unless slated otherwise.

The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accrual basis
and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected
non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the financlal
statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

The financial statements were authorsed for isswe on the same date at which the directors’ declaration
was signed.
Accounting Policles
a Revenue
Mon-reciprocal grant revenue is recognised in profit or loss when the Corporation obtains control

of the grant and it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the
Corporation and the amount of the grant can be measured relably.

If conditions are attached to the grant which must be salisfied before the Corporation is eligible to
recaive the contribution, the recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those
conditions are satisfied.

When grant revenue is recehved whaeraby the Corporation incurs an obligation to deliver economic
value directly back to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant
revenue is recognised in the state of financial position as a liability until the service has been
delivered to the contributor; otherwise the grant is recognised as income on receipt.

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received.

Interast revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial
assets is the rate inherent in the instrument. Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to
racaive a dividend has bean established.

Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the sarvice to the
cuslomer.

Rental income Is recognised on a stralght line basis over the term of the lease.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax.
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Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance Northern Territory Aboriginal Corporation
ABN 26 263 401 676
Financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
HOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

b. Property, Plant and Equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated, less,
where applicable, accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and are therefore camied at cost less
accumulated deprectation and any accumulated impalrment losses. In the event the carrying
amount of plant and equipment is greatar than the estimated recoverable amount, the carmying
amount ks written down immediately o the esfimated recoverable amount and impairment losses
are recognised either in profit or loss or as a revaluation decreasa if the impairment losses relate
to a revalued asset. A formal assessment of recoverable amount is made when impairment
indicators are present (refer to Mote 1(e) for details of impairment).

Plant and equipment that have bean contributed al no cost, or for nominal cost, are valued and
recognised at the fair value of the assetl al the date it Is acquired.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assats, including buildings and capitaised lease assels, but
excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a siraight line basis over the assel's usaful life 1o the
Corporation commeancing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements
are depreciated over the shorler of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful
lives of the improvements.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assels are:

Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate

Plant and equipmeant 3 -7 vyears

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceads with the carmying amount.
These gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. YWhen
revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are
transferred to retained aamings.

c. Leases

Leases of fixed assets, where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of
the asset (but not the legal ownership) are transferred to the Corporation, are classified as finance
leases.

Finance leases are capitalized, recognizsing an asset and a liability equal to the present value of
the minimum lease payments, including any guarantesd residual values,

Leased assels are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives where it is
likety that the Corporation will obtain ownership of the asset. Lease payments are allocated
between the reduction of the lease lability and the lease interest expanse for the period.

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the
lessor, are recognised as expenses on a straighi-line basis over the lease term.

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognisad as a liability and amortised on a straight-
line basis over the life of the lease term.

11



Aboriginal Medical Services Alllance Northern Territory Aboriginal Corporation
ABN 26 263 401 676
Financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

d.

Financial Instruments
Initlal recognition and measurement
Financlal assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Corporation becomes a party to

the: contractual provisions to the Instrument. For financial assets, this is the date that the
Corporation commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (Le. trade date accounting is
adopled).

Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are inftially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs, except whers the instrumant is classified "al fair value through profit or loss™, in
which case transaclion costs are expensed o profit or loss immediately. Where available, quoted
prices in an active market are used lo determine fair value. In other circumstances, valuation

tachniques are adopted.

Trada receivables are inilially measuwrad at the transaction prica if the trade receivables do not

contain significant financing componant or if the practical expedient was applied as specified in

AASB 15 Revenue from Conlracts with Customers.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities

Financial kabiliies are subsegquantly measured al:

= amortised cost; or

= fair value through profit or loss.

A financial Rability Is measured at fair value through profit or loss if the financial lability is:

= a contingant consideration of an acquirer in a business combination to which AASE 3:
Business Combinations applies;

— held for trading; or

= initially designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

All other financial liabilities are subsaquently measured at amortised cost using the affective

interest method.

The effective interest method is a mathod of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest expense over in profit or loss over the relevant period,

The affective interest rate is the intemal rate of retumn of the financial asset or kability. That is, it
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimaled fulure cash flows through the expecied life of the
Instrument to the net carmying amount at initial recognition.

A financial Eability is held for trading if it is:

= incumed for the purpose of repurchasing or repaying in the near term;

= par of a portfolio where there is an actual pattern of short-tarm profit taking; or

= a derivalive financial instrument (excepl for a dervative that is in a financial guarantee
contract or a derivative that is in effective hedging relationships).

Any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss to the extent

that they are not part of a dasignated hedging relationship.

The change in fair value of the financial liability atiributable lo changes in the issuer's credit risk

is laken to olher comprehensive income and is nol subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Instead, it is ransferred to retained eamings upon derecognition of the financial kability.

If taking the change in credit risk in other comprehensive income enlarges or creates an
accounting mismatch, then these gains or losses should be taken to profit or kess rather than
other comprehensive income.

A financial Rability cannot be reclassified.



Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance Northern Territory Aboriginal Corporation
ABN 26 263 401 676
Financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
MNOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial assets

Financial assels are subsequently measured at:

- amaortised cost;

~ fair value throwgh other comprahensive income; or

= fair value through profit or loss

Measurement is on the basis of two primary criteda:

~ the contractual cash flow characterstics of the financial assat; and

= the business model for managing the financial assets.

A financial asset that meats the fofowing condilions is subsequently measured at amortised

cost

= the financial assel is managed solely to collect contractual cash flows; and

= the contractual larms within tha financial asgel give rise to cagh flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates.

A financial asset that meets the following conditions |s subsequently measured at falr value

through other comprehansive incoma:

= the contraciual terms within the inanclal asset glve rise to cash flows that are solely
paymanis of principal and Interast on the principal amount outstanding on spacified dates;
and

- the business modal for managing the financial asset comprises both contractual cash flows
coection and the selling of the financial asset.

By default, all other financial assets that do not meat the measureman conditions of amortised

cost and fair value through other comprehensive income are subsequently measured al fair

value through profit or loss.

Tha Corporation initially designates a financial instrumeant as measured at fair value through

profit or koss if;

= It sliminaies or significantly reduces a measursmeant or mcognition inconsistancy (oftan
referred fo as an “accounting mismatch®) that would otherwise arise from measuring assels or
liabdlities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases;

= It Isin sccordance with the documented risk management or invesiment strategy and
Iinformation about the groupings is documented appropriately, so the performance of the
financeal fabiity that is part of a group of financial Eabilities or financial assets can be
managed and avaluated consistently on a fair value basis; and

= ftis a hybeid contract that containg an embedded dertvative thal significantly modifies the
cash flows otherwise required by the contract.

The initial designation of financial instruments to measure at fair value through profit or loss is a

one-time option on initial classification and is imavocable until the financial asset is derecognised.

Equity instruments

At Initial recognition, as long as the aquity instrument is not held for trading or not a contingant

consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which AASB 3 applies, the

Corporation made an imevocable election to measure any subsequent changes In fair value of

the equity instruments in other comprehansive income, while the dividend revenus received on

underlying equity instruments investrment will still be recognised in profit or loss.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assels are recognised and derecognised at

settiernent date in accordance with the Corporation’s accounting policy.
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Derecognition

Derecognition refers to the remaoval of a previously recognised financial asset or financial kability
from the statement of financial position,

Deracognition of financial Fabilities

A liability is derecognised whan it is extinguished (i.e. when the obligation in the contract s
discharged, cancelled or expires). An exchange of an existing financial liablity for & new ona with
substantially modified terms, or a substantial modification to the terms of a financial lability, is
trearted a5 an extinguishment of the existing liability and recognition of a new financial lkabdity.

The differance batween the camying amount of the financial liabisity derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transfermed or llabilities azsumed,

Is recognised in profit or loss.

Deracognifion of financial assels

A financial asset is derscognised when the holder's contractual rights to its cash flows expires, or

the asset is transferred In such a way that all the risks and rewards of ownarship are

substantialty transferred,

All the following criteria need o be satisfied for the derecognition of a financial assat:

= the right o receive cash flows from the asset has expired or been transfamed;

= all risk and rewards of ownarship of the asset have been substaniially transferred; and

= the Corporation no longer controls the assat (|.e. has no practical ability to make unitateral
decision o sell the assel lo a thind party).

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the
assel’'s carmying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable ks racognised
in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a debt instrument classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulatad in the investrment revaluation
raserve is reclassified to profil or loss.

On derecognition of an investmant in equity which tha Corporation elected lo classify under falr
valua through ather comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumutated
in the investments revaluation reserve is nol reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferrad to
retained eamings.

The Corporation recognises a loss allowanca for expected credit losses on

- financial assats that ane measured at amoriised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive incomse;

- lease recaivables;

= contract assets (e.g. amount due from customers under construction contracis);

= loan commitmants that ara not measured at fair valua through profit or loss; and

= financial guaraniee contracts that are not measured al falr valua through profit or loss.
Loss alowance Is not recognised for

= financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss; or

- equity instruments measured at falr value through other comprahensive income,

Expeciad credil losses are the probabillty-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected
fife of a financial Instrument. A credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
ara due and all cash flows expected o be received, all discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the finandial instrument.

The Coporation uses the following approaches o impaiment, as appicable under AASE O
= the general approach;



Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance Northern Territory Aboriginal Corporation
ABN 26 263 401 676
Financial report for the year ended 30 June 2018

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

= the simplified approach;

= the purchased or originated credit-impaired approach; and
— low credit risk operational simplification.

General approach

Under the general approach, at each reporting period, the Corporation assesses whather the
financial instruments are credit-impaired, and.

= [fthe credit risk of the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Comporation measuras the loss allowance of the financial instruments at an amount equal
to tha lifetime expected credit losses; and

— if there is no significant increase in credit risk since inifial recognition, the Corporation
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses.

Simplified approach

The simplified approach does not require fracking of changes in credit risk at every reporting

period, but instead requires the recognition of lifetime expected credit loss at all times,

This approach is applicable to:

~ ftrade receivables; and

= |aasa racaivablas.

In measuring the expacted credit loss, a provision matrix for trade receivables is used, taking into

consideration various data to get to an expected credit loss (i.e. diversity of its customer basa,

appropriate groupings of its historical loss experience, elc).

Purchased or onginaled credii-mpaired approach

For financial assets that are considerad to be credit-impaired (not on acquisition or onginations),

the Corporation measures any change in its lifetime expected credit loss as the difference

between the assel's gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. Any adjustment is recognised in
prafit or boss as an impairment gain or loss.

Evidence of credit impairment includes:

= significant financial difficulty of the issuer or bomower;

= a breach of contract (e.g. default or past due event);

= alender has granted to the borrower a concession, due to the bormower's financial difficulty,
that the lender would not otherwise consider;

— the likelihood that the bomower willl enter bankrupicy or other financlal recrganisation; and

= the disappearance of an active market for the financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Low credit risk oparational simpiification approach

If a financial assel is determined to have low credil risk at the initial reporting date, the
Corporation assumes that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition
and, accordingly, can continue to recognise a loss allowance of 12-month expected credit loss.

In order to make such a determination that the financial asset has low credit risk, the Corporation
applies its intarmal credit risk ratings or other methodologies using a globally comparable
definition of low credit risk.

A financial asset is considered to have low credit risk if:
— there is a low risk of default by the bormower;

= the borower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term; and
= adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term, may, but not
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nacessarly, reduce the ability of the bomrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

A financlal asset Is not considered to camy low credit risk merely due to existence of collateral, or
because a borrower has a lower risk of default than the risk inharent in the financial assets, or
ralative o the credit risk of the jurisdiction in which it operates.

Recognition of expected credit losses in financial statements

At sach reporting date, the Corporation recognises the movement in the loss allowance as an
impalrmant gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The camying amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost includes the loss allowance
relating lo that assel,
Assels measured al fair valua through other comprehensive income are recognised at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised In other comprehensive income. Tha amount in relation to
change in credit risk s tfransfarrad from other comprabensive income to profit or loss at every
reparting pariod,
For financial assets that ars unrecognisad (8.g9. loan commitments yet to be drawn, financial
guarantees), @ provision for logs allowance is created in the statement of financial position to
recognise the ioss allowance.

8. Impairment of Assets
Al tha and of each reporting perod, the Corporation assesses wheather thers is any Indication that
an assel may be impaired, If such an indication exists, an impaimment test is carried out on the
asset by comparing the recoverable amount of the assat, being the higher of the asset's fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use, Io the assel's carrying amount. Any excess of the assel's
carmying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
asset ks camed al a revalued amount in accordance with ancther Standard (eg in accordance with
the revaluation modad in AASE 116: Property, Plantf and Equipmeant). Any impairment loss of a
revaluad asset ks treated as a revaluation decrease in accordance with that other Standard.
YWhere the future economic benefits of the assets are not primarily dependent upon the assel's
abllty to generate nel cash Inflows and when the Corporation would if deprived of the assal,
repiaca its remaining fulure economic benefits, value in uee s determined as the depreciated
replacermeant cost of an asset.

Where il is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Comporation
estimales the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Whare an impairment loss on a revalued individual asset is ideniified, this is recognised against
the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extant that impaiment loss
does not excead the amount in the reveluation surplus for that class of assel.

1. Employes Benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Provision s made for the Comporation's obligation for short-lerm employee benafits. Shor-term
amployea benefits are benafils (other than termination benefits) that ara axpected fo be settied
wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the related service, including wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave. Short-lem
employea benafits ane measurad at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to b paid when the
obligation is setiied.
The Corporation's obligations for shori-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick
leave are recognised as par of current trade and other payables in the statement of financial
pasition.
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Other long-term employee benefits

The Corporation classifies employees’ long service leave and annual leave entitements as other
long-term employee benefits as they are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service.
Provision is made for the Corporation's obligation for other long-term employee benefits, which are
measured al the present value of the expected futwre payments to be mads to employees.
Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels, durations of
service and employee departures, and are discounted al rates determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dales
that approximate the terms of the obligations. Upon the remeasurement of obligations for other
long-term employes banafits, the net change in the obligation is recognised in profit or loas
classified under employes benafits expense.

The Corporation's obligations for long-term employes benefits are presented as non-cument
liabilities in its staternent of financial position, except whera the Corporation doas not have an
unconditional right to defer settiement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting porod,
in which case the obligations are presented as current liabilities,

Retiremant benefit obligations
Defined contributions superannuation benefits
All employees of the Corporation receive defined contribution superannuation entitiements, for
which the Corporation pays the fixed superannuation guarantee contribution (currently 9.5% of the
employee’s ordinary time eamings) to the employee’s superannuation fund of chalce. All
contributions in respect of employea’s defined contribution entitements are recognised as an
expense when they become payable. The Corporation’s obligation with respect to employee's
defined contribution entitlements is limited to its obligation for any unpaid superannuation
guarantse contributions at the end of the reporting period. All obligations for unpaid
superannuation guarantee contributions are measured at the undiscounted amounts expecied to
be pakd when the obligation Is settied and are presented as current liabilities in the Corporation's
statement of financial position.

Q. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-
term highly liquid imnvestmants with ordginal maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current Rabilities on the statement of financial
positicn.

h. Trade and Other Debtors
Trade and other debtors include amounts dus from members as wall as amounts receivable from
customers for goods sold in the ondinary course of business. Receivables expected to be collected
within 12 months of the end of the reporling pericd are classified as current assats. All other
raceivables are classified as non-cument assets,
Accounts receivable are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, legs any provision for impairment. Refer to Nota 1(d) for
further discussion on the datarmination of impaimment losses.
Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expanses and assets ans recognised net of the amount of GST, sxcept whera the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The
net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or
payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on & gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from
investing or financing activities, which are recoverable from or payable to the ATO, are presented
as operating cash flows included in receipts from customers or payments fo suppliars.
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I

Income Tax

Mo provision for income tax has been raised as the Corporation is exempt from income tax under
Div 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Acl 1997,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised whan the Comporation has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result
of past avents, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result, and that
outflow can be reliably measured, Provisions recognised represent the best estimate of the
amounts required 1o settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Comparative Figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to
changes in presentation for the curment financial year.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and sarvices received by the
Corporation during the reporting period that remain unpaid at the and of the reporting period, The
balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of
recognition of the liability. Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value and
subsequenily measured al amoriised cost using the effective interest method.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statemenits basad
on historical knowledge and best avallable cument information. Estimates assume a reasonable
expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtzined both
entamally and within the Corporation.

Economic Depandance

The Corporation is dependent on the Commaonwealth and Northern Territory Governments for the
majority of its revenue used to operate the business. At the date of this report, the Board of
Diractors has no reason to believe the Commonwealth and Northem Territory Gevemments will
not continue to support the Corporation.

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

The Corporation measures some of its assets and liabilities at falr value on elther a recurring or
nen-recurming basis, depending on the requirements of the applicable Accounting Standard,
“Fair value” is the price the Corporation would receive to sell an asset or would have to pay to
transfer a liability in an orderly (l.e. unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable
and willing market participants at the measurement date.

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing
information is used to datermine fair value. Adjustmeants o market values may be made having
regard to the characlersfics of the specific asset or liabfity. The fair values of assels and Eabilities
that are not traded In an aclive market are determined using one or mone valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise, to the extant possible, the use of observable market data.

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from the principal market for the asset or
liability (i.e. the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or lkability). In the
absence of such a market, market information is extracted from the most advantageous market
avallable o the Corporation al the end of the reporting period (Le. the market that maximises the
recaipts from the sale of the asset or minimisas the payments made to transfer the Kability, after
taking into account trangsaction costs and transport costs).

For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market participant’s
ability to use the assel in its highest and best use or to sell it to ancther market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The fair value of Rabilities and the Corporation's own equity instruments (if any) may be valuad,
where there s no observable market price in relation to the ransfer of such financial instruments,
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by referance to observable market information where such instruments are held as assels. Whaere
this information is not evailable, other valuation techniques are adopted and, where significant, ane
detailed in the respective note to the financial statements.

r. Mew and Amended Accounting Standards Adopted by the Corporation
Initial application of AASB 9: Financial Instruments
The Corporation has adopied AASE 9 with a date of initial application of 1 July 2018, As a result,
the Corporation has changed its financial instruments accounting policies as detalled in this note.
The application of AASB 9 has had no impact on the dassification and measurement of the

Corporation’s financial assets and Rabilities.
The change in impairment model from an incurmed credit loss model to an expected credit loss
model has also not materially affected the provision for impairment.
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Revenue

Revenue from (non-reciprocal) govemment grants and other grants:

Grant funding received during the year
Amounts brought forward from prior year
Amounts carmied forward to future years

Other Income

Interest

Recoupment

Insurance reimbursamants
Profit on disposal of assats
Cther income

Total revenue

MOTE 3: EXPENSES

Profiti{loss) includes the following ems of expenditune:

Employee benefits expense
- Salaries and wages
- Superannuation
= Workers' Compensation
= Fringe Benefits Tax
= Movement in employes leave provisions
- Other employes expenses

20

2019 2018
$ $
0,456,154 7,888,431

700,450 §18,086
(1,798,814)  (700,499)
8,358,039 8,106,018
33,387 38,638
199,711 98,476
40,558 88,913
28,986 19,212
82,154 124,466
384,704 370,705
8,742,833 B8,485723
5025254 4,819,987
453,030 431,697
59,135 71.086
6,555 15,821
116,684 247 583
51,609 61,145
5,712,357 5,647,419
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2019 2018
5 $
Operations expense
- Advertising and promotion 8,530 8,835
- Agency temporary staffing costs 18,681 30,248
- Bad and doubtful debis 1,082 6,670
- Bank feos and miscellaneous interest charges 898 2,202
- Cleaning costs 35,857 33,363
-  Conferences and seminars 30,722 146,602
- ICT expanses 280,155 237,788
- Insurance 21,714 21,172
- Membership fees 8,551 10,231
- Other 12,411 13,924
- Printing, pestage and office supplies 60,066 58,517
- Project expenses 184,134 280,780
- Rem 448 938 440,087
- Repairs, maintenance and minor equipment 45,856 25,564
- Utilities 23377 22,072

1,200,072 1,338,245

NOTE 4: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CURRENT

Cash at bank - operating bank accounts 512,456 1,009,847

Cash at bank - term deposits and other investment accounts 3239069 1,765253

Cash on hand 797 285
14 3752322 2,775,385

NOTE 5: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

CURRENT

Trade receivablas 306,717 704,065

Provision for impaiment - (5.360)

Total current trade and other receivables 14 308,717 608,705

The Corporation’s normal credit terms are 30 days
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MNOTE §: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

a. Provision for Impairment of Receivables

Movemant in the provision for impairment of receivables is as follows:

Provigion for impairment as at 1 July 2017
- Charge for the year

= Written off

Provision for impaimment as at 30 June 2018
- Charge fior the year

- Written off

Provision for impairment as at 30 June 2019

NOTE 6: OTHER ASSETS

CURRENT
Prepayments
Bonds receivable
Cther assels

NOTE 7: PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and Equipment

Motor vehicles

At cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Other plant and equipment
At cost
Less accumulated depreciation

Toltal plant and equipment

21

5,260
5,360
(5,360)
2019 2018
§ $
225,801 126,750
1,084 1.840
6,406 1,953
233.2M 130,543
400,476 382,426
(185,007}  (182,007)
__ 2409 200320
171,821 160,460
(149,029)  (137.601)
__:po 2288
247,361 223,188
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NOTE 7: PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movement in the camying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning
and the end of the currant financial year:

Other Plant
Motor and
Vehicles Equipment  Total
$ 1 5
Carrying amount at 1 July 2018 200,329 22,859 223188
Additions at cost 91,788 11,461 103,249
Disposals’ - - .
Depreciation expense (BT 648) (11.428) (79,076)
Camying amount at 30 June 2019 224,469 22892 247,361

1Al disposals during the year were fully depreciated and had a written down value of nil,

NOTE 8: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Note 2018 2018
§ $
CURRENT
Trade payables 269,749 302,730
GST payable 129,558 114,647
Accrued expansas and other sundry payables 251,596 257 646
Comporate credit card liability 6,485 5,288
Bonds payable 1.900 6,020
8a 650,288 686,340

a. Financlal liabilities at amortised cost classified as trade

and othar payables

Trade and other payables:

- total current 659,288 686,340

Less GET payable (129,558)  (114,847)

Financial liabilities as trade and other payables 14 529,730 571,693
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CURRENT
Provision for employee benefits: annual leave 601,926 574,642
Prowvision fior employee banefits: long service leave 512,016 443,201
Provigion for employes benefits: other 8,358 22,117
1,123,300 1,038,960
MNON-CURRENT
Provision for employee benefits: long senvice leave 87415 75709
87415 75,700
1,210,715 1,115,669
Employee
Provisions
5
Analysis of employee provisions
Opening balance at 1 July 2018 1,115,668
Additional provisions ralsed during year 861,038
Amounts used (765,082)
Balance at 30 June 2019 1,210,715
Provision for employee benefits

Provision for employee benefits represents amounts accrued for annual leave, long service leave and
othar employes entilemants.

The cumrent portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave entitiements, long
sarvice leave entiements and other leave entitlemants that have vested due to employees having
completed the required period of service. Based on past experience, the Corporation does not axpect the
full amount of annual leave or long service leave balances classified as current liabilities to be settled
within the next 12 months. Howewver, these amounts must be classified as current liabilities since the
Corporation does not have an unconditional right to defier the settement of these amounts in the event
employees wish to use their leave entilement.

The non-cument partion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long service leave entiemants that
have not yet vested In relation to those employees who have not yet compleled the required period of
sarvice.

In calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long sarvice leave, the probability of long
senvice leave being taken is based upon historical data. The measuremant and recognition criteria for
employee banefits have been discussed in Note 1{f).
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NOTE 10: OTHER LIABILITIES

CURRENT
Unexpended grant funding carmied forward
Other income in advance

MNOTE 11: CASH FLOW INFORMATION

a. Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operating Activities
with Net Current Year Profiti{Loss)

Met current year profiti{loss)

Adjustment for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
{Increaseydecrease in accounts recaivable and other debtors
{Increasa)ydecrease in other assets

Increasa/{decrease) in accounts payable and other payables
Increase/{decrease) in employee provisions
Increasel{decrease) in other liabilities

Met cash generated by operating activities
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2019 2018
$ H
1,132 502 700,499
730,112 B37.281
1862614  1337,780
119,022 (74,002)
79,076 149,575
(28,986)  (19,212)
391,988 (573,808)
(102,728) (11,282)
(27.052) 189,067
95,046 213,074
524,834 418,695
1,051,200 283,327
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NOTE 12: CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS

a. Operating Lease Commitments

Men-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not
recognisad in the financial slalements

Payable = minimum lease paymanis:

- not later than one year

- later than one year and not later than five years

- later than five years

The property lease commitments are non-cancellable
operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the
financial statements with each lease expiring on 30 June
2021. Thesa leases previously axpired on 30 June 2019 and
were re-negoliated and entered into during the year. An
increase in lease commitments may occur during the lease
term in line with the consumer price indeox.

b. Capital Expenditure Commitments

The Corporation had no capital expenditure commitments at 30 June 2019 (2018: Nil).

NOTE 13: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Corporation had ne contingent liabilities at 30 June 2019 (2018: Ndl).

NOTE 14: FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT

2018

456,836
506,240

1,003,076

2018

ayT.ra2

aT1.T22

The Corporation’s financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and

accounts payable,

The canrying amounts for each category of financial instruments, measurad in accordance with AASE 9:
Financial instruments as detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:

Financial assets
Financial assels al amortised cost
= Cash and cash equivalents
- Trade and cther receivables
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities
Financial kabilities at amortised cost:
—  trade and other payables
Total financial liabilities
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Note

L= -

n1e e
] $
3,752,322 2,775,385
308,717 698,705
4,050,039 3,474,000
528,730 571,693
520,730 571,683




Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance Northern Territory Aboriginal Corporation
ABN 26 263 401 676
Financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019

MOTE 15: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION AND OTHER RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Corporation, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otharwisa) of that
Caorporation, is considered key management personnal (KMP)

The lotals of remuneration pald lo KMP of the Corporation during the year are as follows.

2019 2018
§ $
=  shorterm employee benefits 1,062,246 1,067,662
- post-employment benefits 104,576 104,857

~  other long-tarm benefits

1166822 1,172,519

NOTE 16: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year the Corporation received grant funding from NT PHN of $1,482,082 (2018: 3674,116). The
Corporation is a member of the Company.

Mo other related party transactions occurred during the cument or prior year.

MOTE 17: EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Mo matier or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2019 that has significantly affected, or may
significanily affect the Corporation’s operations, the results of those operations, or tha Corporation's state
of affairs in future inancial years,

NOTE 18: CORPORATION DETAILS
The registered office and principal place of the Corporation is:

First Floor, 43 Mitchell Streat
Drarwin NT 0E00
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Aboriginal Medical Services Alllance Morthern Territory Aboriginal
Corporation ABN 26 263 401 678
Financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019

DIRECTORS' DECLARATION
The directors of the registered Corporation declare that, in the directors’ opinion:

1. The financlal statements and notes, a3 set out on pages & 1o 27, are in accordance with the
Corporations (Abariginal and Tomes Strall Islander) Act 2006 and Australian Charities and Nol-
for-profits Commigsion Act 2012 and:

a.  comply with Australian Accounting Standards = Reduced Disclosure Requinemeants, the
Corporations (Aboriginal and Torres Strai Islander) Reguiations 2007 and the
Austrafian Chariies and Nol-for-profits Commission Reguiation 2013; and

b, give a trus and fair view of the Snancial position of the Conporation as at 30 June 2018 and
of its performance for the year ended on thal date.

2. There are ressonable grounds to belleve that the Corporation will be abla to pay its debts as and
‘when they become due and payable,

This directors’ declaration is signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Director {:{ -

R

Dated this 25% day of Oclober 2018
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Nexia
Edwards Marshall NT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ABORIGINAL MEDICAL SERVICES ALLIANCE NORTHERN
TERRITORY ABORIGINAL CORPORATION
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance Northern Territory Aboriginal Corporation (“the
Corporation’), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of Aboriginal Medical Services Alliance Northern Territory Aboriginal
Corporation, is in accordance with the requirements of Corporations (Abariginal and Torres Strait Islander) Act 2006 and
Division 60 of the Australion Charities and Not-for-prafits Commission Act 2012; including:
i.  Givingatrueand fair view of the Corporation’s financial positien as at 30 June 2019 and of its financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended; and
fi. Complying with Australian Accounting Standards = Reduced Disclosure Requirements (including Australian
Accounting Interpretations), the Corporations (Abarigingl and Torres Stroit Islender) Regulations 2007 and Div 60
of the Australion Charities and Not-fer-profits Commission Regulation 2013.

Bosis for Opinion

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiol Report section of our report. We are
independent of the Corporation in accordance with the auditer independence reguirements of the Austrolion Charities and
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Corporations (Aboriginal ond Torres Strailt Islander] Act 2006 and the ethical
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to cur audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financlal Report

The directors of the Corporation are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards — Reduced Disclosure Requirements, the Corporations [Aboriginal and
Torres Stralt islander) Act 2006 and the Australion Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012; and is appropriate to
meet the needs of the members. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Corporation or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT (CONT.)
Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when It exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit In accordance with the Australlan Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

# ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the finandial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,

+« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the crcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Corporation’s internal controd,

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies vsed and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the finandial report or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinien. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Corporation to cease to continue as & going
CONCErm.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial repert, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors and management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

fvé.‘x'q 1&’[ wv;/} I&/‘HLA/ mj{

Mexia Edwards Marshall NT
Chartered Accountants

[ A/ |
e j{ﬁ {4—1/
L.‘

Noel Clifford
Partner

Dated 25 October 2019
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